
 
 
 
 

One Olde Half Day Road 
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069  
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov  
 

Page | 1  
 

APPROVED Minutes of the regularly scheduled ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
BOARD held on Tuesday, November 19, 2019 in the Public Meeting 
Room of the Village Hall, 1 Olde Half Day Road, Lincolnshire, IL 

 
PRESENT: Members Orzeske, Santosuosso, Baskin, and McCall and Trustee-

Liaison Hancock 
 
ABSENT: Chair Kennerley, Member Tapia, and Alternate Member Killedar  
      
ALSO PRESENT: Ben Gilbertson, Assistant Village Manager/Community and Economic 

Development Director (AVM/CEDD) and Tonya Zozulya, Planning and 
Development Manager (PDM) 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
AVM/CEDD Gilbertson stated Chair Kennerley was not in attendance and requested a motion 
from the Architectural Review Board (ARB) to appoint a Chair Pro Tem for the meeting.  
 
Member Baskin moved and Member Santosuosso seconded the motion to nominate Member 
Orzeske Chair Pro Tem for the November 19, 2019 ARB meeting.  
 
The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
Chair Pro Tem Orzeske called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.  
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 

The roll was called by PDM Zozulya. Chair Pro Tem Orzeske declared a quorum to be 
present. 
 

2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

2.1 Approval of the minutes of the Architectural Review Board meeting held on 
Thursday, October 17, 2019 

 
Member Baskin moved and Member Santosuosso seconded the motion to 
approve the minutes as presented for the October 17, 2019 ARB meeting. 

 
The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 
3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 

3.1 Consideration of Site and Building Design, Signage, Landscaping, and Lighting 
Plans for a Proposed Building Addition to Daniel Wright Junior High School – 
1370 Riverwoods Road (Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103)  

 
PDM Zozulya provided an overview of the request. She stated School District 
103 is seeking the ARB’s design review for a 1,800-square-foot building 
addition to create additional classroom space in response to their growing 



 
 

 
 

One Olde Half Day Road 
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069  
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov  
 

2 
V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2019\11_19_2019_Minutes_APPROVED.doc 

enrollment. The Village Board held a preliminary evaluation of the request at 
the November 11, 2019 Committee of the Whole meeting and referred the 
request to the Zoning Board for a Special Use permit and variation requests, 
and to the ARB for design review. PDM Zozulya stated the Zoning Board held 
a public hearing on November 12, 2019 and provided a unanimous favorable 
recommendation with a condition that the parking lot be brought into code 
compliance when future parking lot improvements are implemented. She 
noted the ARB review should focus on site and building design, signage, 
landscaping, and lighting. PDM Zozulya added the application is scheduled for 
final review by the Village Board at its November 25, 2019 Committee of the 
Whole meeting.    

 
Matt Bickel, Wold Architects & Engineers provided additional detail on the 
proposed improvements. He said the project includes a relocated main 
entrance to create a sense of formal entry and installation of a backlit wall 
identification sign that states “Daniel Wright Junior High School” on the 
building façade adjacent to the main entrance. He reviewed the material and 
color scheme of the building. Mr. Bickel noted two of the three existing 
ground signs will remain. The smaller of the two ground signs next to the 
building will be refaced, and the landscaping at the base of both signs will be 
enhanced.  

 
Leo Morand of Gewalt Hamilton summarized the proposed site configuration 
and changes to stormwater detention. 

 
Mr. Bickel presented and reviewed photos of the perimeter of the building to 
demonstrate the proposed and current brick building material and the color 
variations which occurred as a result of several previous additions. Mr. Bickel 
also reviewed the interior floor plan and proposed reconfiguration. He then 
addressed the proposed landscape plan.  

 
Member Santosuosso inquired if there will be lights installed under the 
proposed canopy. Mr. Bickel stated lights will be installed, but they are 
currently not included in the photo metrics plan. PDM Zozulya stated based on 
the location of the lights and their intensity, staff did not anticipate any 
impact on light levels at property lines.  
 
Member Santosuosso inquired whether future additions are contemplated to 
accommodate additional students. Scott Gaunky, Director of Facilities for 
School District 103, stated no future additions are currently planned.  
 
Member Baskin said he appreciates the design vision which complements the 
mid-century modern model and congratulated the petitioner on incorporating 
new materials throughout the building design. He expressed concerns with 
landscaping, stating his desire to see plantings throughout the property to 
include color throughout all seasons. Mr. Gaunkey stated they incorporated 
year-round color and previously planted entryway landscaping through grants 
from the Lincolnshire Garden Club and student-led projects with oversight by 
the school biology teacher as part of an outdoor lab space. Member Baskin 
stated he would like to see additional landscaping to benefit the students. 



 
 

 
 

One Olde Half Day Road 
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069  
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov  
 

3 
V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2019\11_19_2019_Minutes_APPROVED.doc 

Member Baskin moved and Member Santosuosso seconded the motion for 
Item 3.1, that the Architectural Review Board recommended the Village Board 
approve the proposed site and building design, signage, landscaping, and 
lighting plans for the Daniel Wright Junior High School property, located at 
1370 Riverwoods Road, as presented in the petitioner’s presentation packet, 
dated November 12, 2019, and further subject to the petitioner’s 
consideration of additional landscaping installation to enhance the outdoor 
experience for students.  

 
Roll Call: 
 
Ayes: Baskin, Santosuosso, Orzeske, McCall 
Nayes: None 
 
The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 

3.2 Approval of a Minor Amendment to a Special Use Permit to Permit Recently-
Completed Exterior Building Color Changes for SpringHill Suites Hotel – 300 
Marriott Drive (Color Applications, Inc.)  

 
PDM Zozulya provided an overview of the request. She stated the petitioner, 
SpringHill Suites Hotel, seeks ARB approval of recent exterior building color at 
300 Marriott Drive. The hotel was developed in 2000 in the O/Ia Office 
Industrial Zoning District, and was granted a Special Use Permit with 
variations at that time. She stated that as part of the approvals, the Village 
approved exterior building materials and colors which were presented in the 
packet. PDM Zozulya stated the petitioner recently repainted the exteriors to 
blue, grey, and white representing SpringHill Suites current corporate 
branding colors. She further stated the petitioner was not aware this type of 
exterior change required ARB review and approval. 
 
Robert Morris, Color Applications, Inc., representing SpringHill Suites, 
apologized to the ARB for not obtaining approval prior to painting the building 
exterior. Mr. Morris summarized the rebranding effort of SpringHill Suites, 
noting the extensive research that went into the color selection that is being 
applied to SpringHill Suites nationally. He then presented photos of the hotel 
that illustrated the new color scheme.  
 
Member McCall stated he was on the ARB at the time SpringHill Suites was 
initially reviewed, stating the original color was selected to compliment the 
red masonry. He added he is not in favor of the blue color. Member Baskin 
said he understands the rebranding effort, but the color must be in context 
with other building colors, adding the original color enhanced the community 
and building. Trustee-Liaison Hancock asked members if the petitioner had 
sought this color prior to painting, would the ARB approve the selection. ARB 
members stated they would have advised the ARB to not approve the 
selection. Member Santosuosso said the petitioner needs to find a solution 
that will work with the red brick exterior element of the building, adding the 
ARB will work with the hotel to come up with a solution. Mr. Morris stated he 
does not have the authority to authorize any exterior color changes without 



 
 

 
 

One Olde Half Day Road 
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069  
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov  
 

4 
V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2019\11_19_2019_Minutes_APPROVED.doc 

the input of the Marriott Corporation. PDM Zozulya stated staff has shared 
their concerns with local hotel management team about the color. She added 
local management understands the process and concerns regarding the color 
choice. Representatives from SpringHill Suites were primarily concerned about 
whether changes would be required immediately after the ARB review given 
the winter season. Staff informed the management that any required changes 
would be deferred until favorable weather conditions. Chair Pro Tem Orzeske 
stated he is sympathetic to corporate rebranding efforts and policy but prefers 
the original colors. He did not think the petitioner should alter the color of the 
existing brick through whitewashing as that would undermine its structural 
integrity. 
 
Member McCall moved, seconded by Member Baskin to continue the request 
for a minor amendment to the Special Use for SpringHill Suites, requesting 
the petitioner resubmit with alternate color pallet selections and paint 
schemes for further consideration.  
 
Roll Call: 
 
Ayes: Baskin, Santosuosso, Orzeske, McCall 
Nayes: None 
 
The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
Dee Wade, Projects Manager, Color Applications Inc, said he will provide 
alternative paint schemes for review with Marriott Corporation 
representatives. PDM Zozulya stated staff will stay in touch with the petitioner 
regarding their next appearance before the ARB once the petitioner submits 
options for review. 
 

3.3 Workshop regarding Site and Building Design, Signage, Landscaping, and 
Lighting Plans for a Large, Full-Service, Recreation, Health, and Fitness 
Facility Known as the St. James – 90, 98 & 100 Half Day Road (TSJ 
Lincolnshire Property LLC)  
  
PDM Zozulya provided an overview of the request and purpose of the 
workshop, including reviews of site and building design, signage, landscaping 
and lighting. She stated there will be no formal action taken, as the TSJ 
Lincolnshire Property LLC (the petitioner) is only seeking an exchange of 
concept and ideas, receive feedback from the ARB, and refine the plans as 
needed for further review and recommendation at a future meeting. Member 
Baskin stated there was a lot to review. He suggested the ARB narrow their 
review to site, exterior design, and overall design concept for the current 
meeting, given the large scope of the proposal. Chair Pro Tem Orzeski said 
the petitioner should have the opportunity to make their full presentation and 
the ARB will provide comments. PDM Zozulya reviewed the respective 
purviews of the ARB and the Village Board to reiterate the aspects of the 
petitioner’s proposal that the ARB could provide feedback on. 
 
Michael Kerin, Director of Real Estate Development for The St. James, 



 
 

 
 

One Olde Half Day Road 
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069  
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov  
 

5 
V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2019\11_19_2019_Minutes_APPROVED.doc 

summarized the mission and vision of The St. James. He stated The St. James 
develops and operates premier sports, wellness, and entertainment 
destinations in the country. Mr. Kerin presented interior photos of various 
entertainment and food venues that will be available at The St. James. He 
also summarized site conditions and proximity to the tollway, noting the site 
includes approximately 43 acres that received zoning approvals for The St. 
James as well as recreation, entertainment, and hospitality uses. He stated 
the wooded perimeter of the site will remain to provide screening, and tree 
preservation will be a priority. He further stated the building design will be 
clean, bright, and inviting to reflect company’s brand. 
 
Keith Demchinski, Landscape Architect with Kimley-Horn, provided an 
overview of the landscape plan, noting the efforts to preserve existing trees 
along the perimeter of the property. He stated the majority of tree removal 
will occur within the site, adding more trees will be planted than removed. Mr. 
Demchinski provided photos of existing trees along the southern and western 
perimeters of the property. He added site furnishings and vertical landscaping 
will be added to enhance the clean lines of the building, and the majority of 
the proposed plant palette will be native to the surrounding area and provide 
year-round color. 
 
Scott Wilson, Engineer with Kimley-Horn, summarized the governmental 
review processes that have taken place to date regarding site plans, 
wetlands, and drainage. Final engineering plans have been submitted to both 
Lake County and Village staff. The site will meet current watershed ordinance 
requirements per Lake County.  
 
Jeff Barber, Architect with Gensler, presented an overview of the interior floor 
plans and building elevations. Parapets on the roof will provide rooftop 
screening. Mr. Barber said The St. James front entry will include a geometric 
design element to provide visual interest upon entering the site and will 
complement landscaping. He indicated the fieldhouse will include translucent 
clerestory windows and the building’s orientation will maximize energy 
efficiency. He stated the entrance will include precast vertical panels with a 
muted color palette to convey a sense of calm, with dynamism provided in 
the geometry of the design. 
 
Reginald Truxon, Architect with Gensler, summarized the lighting plan, stating 
nighttime views will have minimal lighting, allowing a more natural glow from 
the building. Lighting for the pedestrian path and parking lot will be provided 
mainly for security and will face downward to minimize light pollution. Mr. 
Truxon provided further detail on the monument and wall signage, both of 
which will be internally illuminated. The wayfinding sign letters will be a 
reflective material but will not be illuminated.  
 
Member Baskin stated he had previous experience with the site. He asked 
how The St. James brand relates to the Lincolnshire community. He 
suggested providing a master plan for the entire 43-acre property and more 
landscaping, noting his concerns regarding building size. He suggested scaling 
it down, softening the parking lots, and complementing the community. 



 
 

 
 

One Olde Half Day Road 
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069  
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov  
 

6 
V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2019\11_19_2019_Minutes_APPROVED.doc 

Member Baskin inquired whether the petitioner plans to pursue LEED 
(Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) certification for this project. 
Mr. Kerin stated they are reviewing environmental design concepts that will 
include both green components and energy efficiencies. 
 
Chair Pro Tem Orzeske noted the potential problems of vehicle stacking and 
concerns of traffic backing up onto Half Day Road. He stated the building is 
very large and he is concerned about the economic viability of a single-use 
building and potential future reuse. He further stated there appears to be 
significant activity confined to a small area at the building entry, with 
additional impacts possible when remaining outlots are developed. Chair Pro 
Tem Orzeske also commented on the scale of the building, adding he would 
like to see renderings that address the pedestrian flow, and the plaza to 
include colors and materials. 
 
Member McCall inquired about facility use and membership/occupancy 
projections. Mr. Kerin replied KLOA (Kenig, Lindgren, O’Hara, Aboona, Inc.) is 
the traffic consultant for the project. They will consult with KLOA to request 
more numbers on usage during the varying events and also request additional 
review of traffic patterns at the main entrance drop off point. Member McCall 
stated the development presents a design style similar to a university 
campus, adding the style of the precast elements provides architectural 
interest. He expressed his appreciation for the downward lighting effects. 
Member McCall also noted his concern regarding long walks from the parking 
areas to the front entrance and commented the 75’ height of the fieldhouse 
adds to the building mass. He suggested additional design elements to the 
building to break up the mass, noting the site is a perfect location for high-
traffic uses. Member Baskin stated the walk to the building should be as 
pleasing as the walk through the building. He suggested modifying the 
parking lot for an improved pedestrian experience.  
 
Member Santosuosso asked whether the pervious surface includes all 
proposed buildings. Mr. Kerin stated he will review this with his engineering 
team and provide a response at the next meeting. Member Santosuosso 
noted concerns about the adjacent Florsheim property and potential 
residential development, stating he would prefer car circulation closer to the 
building rather that at the perimeter, as well as a taller berm. He further 
suggested designating a parking area for buses only. Mr. Kerin stated The St. 
James development near Washington, D.C., buses park off site. Member 
Santosuosso commented that might be problematic in this area. Member 
Santosuosso suggested they consider a boulevard and include a turning area 
for drop-offs in the parking lot areas to provide more efficient movement into 
and out of the site. Member Santosuosso inquired whether the proposed 
loading will be sufficient. Mr. Kerin stated the loading is appropriate for their 
operations.   
 
In summary, the ARB provided the following comments for The St. James 
development team to consider for revisions in preparation for a future 
meeting where additional review will take place: 
 



 
 

 
 

One Olde Half Day Road 
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069  
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov  
 

7 
V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2019\11_19_2019_Minutes_APPROVED.doc 

• Scale down the building and provide continuity of materials on the building 
exterior with emphasis on breaking up building mass. 

• Put the building in context with the community; provide information on 
how The St. James brand relates to Lincolnshire. 

• Provide renderings of the proposed building to “human scale”. 
• Provide a Master Plan for site and future development of outlots. 
• Break up the parking lot with landscaping, open and/or green spaces for 

pedestrians. 
• Enhance the scale and design of the plaza. 
• Review traffic circulation, bus stacking/parking, front entry drop-off, and 

loading areas. 
• Install a bigger berm. 

 
Chair Pro Tem Orzeske opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Rob Weinberg, Lincolnshire resident from the Sutton Place subdivision, stated 
he appreciated the ARB’s comments regarding the scale of the building. Mr. 
Weinberg said the building looks like a sports team facility. He is concerned 
this will become a 24/7 operation with multiple buses and trucks. He stated 
he believes traffic will increase from all directions, not just the tollway.   
 
Bob Schafer, Lincolnshire resident from the Wood Creek Courts subdivision, 
stated his appreciation for the ARB’s comments. He suggested getting input 
from the Lincolnshire Riverwoods Fire Protection District for egress and ability 
to respond to an emergency on the perimeter of the building. PDM Zozulya 
stated that Fire Protection District reviewed the plans as part of the 
Development Review Team.  
 
Chair Pro Tem Orzeske asked if there were other members of the audience 
wishing to speak. There being no further comments, Chair Pro Tem Orzeske 
closed the public hearing. 
 
PDM Zozulya stated staff will meet with petitioner for follow-up and will 
schedule the next ARB review regarding this proposal at a future date. 
 

3.4 Approval of 2020 Architectural Review Board Calendar and Meeting Schedule 
(Village of Lincolnshire) 
   
AVM/CEDD Director Gilbertson stated the Illinois Open Meetings Act requires 
all advisory boards to approve their meeting schedule and calendar prior to 
the first meeting of the proceeding year. AVM/CEDD Director Gilbertson 
reviewed the 2020 dates for the Architectural Review Board meeting 
schedule.  
  
Member Santosuosso moved and Member McCall seconded approval of the 
2020 Architectural Review Board meeting dates as prepared by staff. 
 

           The motion was unanimously approved upon a voice vote. 
 

4.0  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 



 
 

 
 

One Olde Half Day Road 
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069  
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov  
 

8 
V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2019\11_19_2019_Minutes_APPROVED.doc 

5.0  NEW BUSINESS 

6.0  CITIZENS COMMENTS 

7.0  ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, Chair Pro Tem Orzeske requested an 
adjournment to which Member Santosuosso made a motion and Member 
McCall seconded. The meeting adjourned at 9:19 p.m. 

 
Minutes submitted by Carol Lustig, Administrative Assistant, Community & 
Economic Development. 


